
 

 
 

 

 
 

South Somerset District Council 
 
 

Thursday 30th March 2023 
 

7.30 pm 
 

Council Chamber 
Council Offices 
Brympton Way 
Yeovil, BA20 2HT 

 

(disabled access and a hearing loop are available at this meeting venue)   

 

 
All members of Council are requested to attend this meeting 
 
If you would like any further information on the items to be discussed, please contact the 
Democratic Services Specialist on 01935 462148 or democracy@southsomerset.gov.uk 
 

Any members of the public wishing to address the meeting at Public Question Time are  
asked to email democracy@southsomerset.gov.uk by 9.00am on Wednesday 29 March 
2023 so we can advise on access to the meeting.  
 
If you would like to view the meeting on-line without participating, please see:  
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCSDst3IHGj9WoGnwJGF_soA 
 
This Agenda was issued on Wednesday 22 March 2023. 
 

  Jane Portman, Chief Executive Officer 

 
 

 
This information is also available on our website 
www.southsomerset.gov.uk and via the Modern.Gov app 

 

Public Document Pack

mailto:democracy@southsomerset.gov.uk
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCSDst3IHGj9WoGnwJGF_soA


South Somerset District Council Membership 
 

Chairman: Paul Maxwell 
Vice-chairman: Wes Read 
 
Barbara Appleby 
Jason Baker 
Robin Bastable 
Mike Best 
Neil Bloomfield 
Ray Buckler 
Dave Bulmer 
Hayward Burt 
Tony Capozzoli 
Martin Carnell 
John Clark 
Nicola Clark 
Louise Clarke 
Nick Colbert 
Adam Dance 
Sarah Dyke 
Karl Gill 
David Gubbins 
Peter Gubbins 
 

Brian Hamilton 
Mike Hewitson 
Henry Hobhouse 
Ben Hodgson 
Charlie Hull 
Kaysar Hussain 
Val Keitch 
Andy Kendall 
Jenny Kenton 
Tim Kerley 
Mike Lewis 
Mike Lock 
Pauline Lock 
Tony Lock 
Kevin Messenger 
Graham Oakes 
Tricia O'Brien 
Sue Osborne 
Tiffany Osborne 
 

Robin Pailthorpe 
Oliver Patrick 
Clare Paul 
Crispin Raikes 
David Recardo 
Paul Rowsell 
Dean Ruddle 
Gina Seaton 
Peter Seib 
Garry Shortland 
Jeny Snell 
Andy Soughton 
Mike Stanton 
Rob Stickland 
Lucy Trimnell 
Gerard Tucker 
Martin Wale 
William Wallace 
Colin Winder 
 

 
 

Information for the Public  
 

The meetings of the full Council, comprising all 60 members of South Somerset District 
Council, are held at least 6 times a year. The full Council approves the Council’s budget 
and the major policies which comprise the Council’s policy framework.  Other decisions 
which the full Council has to take include appointing the Leader of the Council, members 
of the District Executive, other Council Committees and approving the Council’s 
Constitution (which details how the Council works including the scheme allocating 
decisions and Council functions to committees and officers). 
 

 
The agenda, minutes and the timetable for council meetings are published on the 
Council’s website – www.southsomerset.gov.uk/councillors-and-democracy/meetings-
and-decisions 
 

Agendas and minutes can also be viewed via the modern.gov app (free) available for 
iPads and Android devices. Search for ‘modern.gov’ in the app store for your device and 
select ‘South Somerset’ from the list of publishers and then select the committees of 
interest. A wi-fi signal will be required for a very short time to download an agenda but 
once downloaded, documents will be viewable offline. 
 
 
 



 

 

Public participation at meetings (held in person and 

via Zoom) and Public question time 

 
We recognise that these are challenging times but we still value the public’s contribution 
to our meetings. If you would like to participate and contribute in the meeting, we would 
encourage you to please join on-line through Zoom at: https://zoom.us/join 
You will need an internet connection to do this. 
 
Please email democracy@southsomerset.gov.uk for the details to join the meeting. 
If you would like to view the meeting on-line without participating, please see: 
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCSDst3IHGj9WoGnwJGF_soA  
 
The period allowed for participation in Public Question Time shall not exceed 15 minutes 
except with the consent of the Chairman and members of the Committee. Each 
individual speaker shall be restricted to a total of three minutes. 
 
If you would like to attend the meeting in person and speak at Public Question Time, 
please email democracy@southsomerset.gov.uk by 9.00am on Wednesday 29 March 
2023. When you have registered, the Chairman will invite you to speak at the 
appropriate time during the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ordnance Survey mapping/map data included within this publication is provided by South Somerset District 
Council under licence from the Ordnance Survey in order to fulfil its public function to undertake its statutory 
functions on behalf of the district.  Persons viewing this mapping should contact Ordnance Survey copyright for 
advice where they wish to licence Ordnance Survey mapping/map data for their own use. South Somerset 
District Council - LA100019471 - 2023. 
 
 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCSDst3IHGj9WoGnwJGF_soA
mailto:democracy@southsomerset.gov.uk


South Somerset District Council 
Thursday 30 March 2023 
 
Agenda 
 
 

1.   Apologies for Absence  
 

2.   Minutes  
 

To approve and sign the minutes of the previous meeting held on Thursday, 19 January 
2023. 

3.   Declarations of Interest  
 

In accordance with the Council's current Code of Conduct (as amended 26 February 
2015), which includes all the provisions relating to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI), 
personal and prejudicial interests, Members are asked to declare any DPI and also any 
personal interests (and whether or not such personal interests are also "prejudicial") in 
relation to any matter on the Agenda for this meeting.  

Members are reminded that they need to declare the fact that they are also a member of 
a County, Town or Parish Council as a Personal Interest.  Where you are also a member 
of Somerset County Council and/or a Town or Parish Council within South Somerset you 
must declare a prejudicial interest in any business on the agenda where there is a 
financial benefit or gain or advantage to Somerset County Council and/or a Town or 
Parish Council which would be at the cost or to the financial disadvantage of South 
Somerset District Council.   

4.   Public Question Time  
 

5.   Chairman's Announcements  
 
Items for Discussion 
 

6.   Chairman's Engagements (Page 6) 
 

7.   Confirmation of Minutes of Committee meetings held during March 2023 
(Pages 7 - 9) 
 

8.   Reflections of South Somerset District Council (Page 10) 
 

9.   Sale of commercial development land at Lufton, Yeovil (Lufton 2000 joint 
venture) (Pages 11 - 17) 
 

10.   2021/22 Auditor's Annual Report (Pages 18 - 61) 
 

11.   Report of Executive Decisions (Pages 62 - 65) 
 

12.   Audit Committee (Page 66) 
 

13.   Scrutiny Committee (Page 67) 
 



 

 

 
 

14.   Motions  
 

There were no Motions submitted by Members. 

15.   Questions Under Procedure Rule 10  
 

There were no questions submitted under Procedure Rule 10. 
 



 

 

 
 
 

 
Chairman’s Engagements 
 
 
The Chairman has continued to meet with the District and County Chairs from all five 
Somerset Councils collaborating and collating data around civic duty as part of the 
Local Government Reorganisation programme in Somerset. The most recent meeting 
was held at County Hall in Taunton on 14th February 2023. 
 
The Chairman attended a celebration of the five Somerset Councils on Sunday 12th 
March at 3pm, held at Wells Cathedral, where he gave a thanksgiving speech to all 
members and officers past and present who have contributed to the outstanding work 
of all five councils in Somerset.  
 
The Chairman attended a celebration of South Somerset District Council’s 
achievements at ‘SSDC Celebrates!” on Thursday 23rd March at 3.30pm, held at 
Westlands Entertainment Venue. He gave a thanksgiving speech to all members and 
officers past and present who have contributed to the outstanding work of the district 
council since its establishment in 1974 (formally known as Yeovil District Council, 
adopting the name South Somerset District Council in 1985)  
 
The Chairman, alongside the Leader of the Council and colleagues from the 
Countryside team led an SSDC Commemorative Tree Planting event on 23rd March 
2023, held immediately before the “SSDC Celebrates” event. An Oak tree was planted 
at Penn Hill Park near the Octagon in Yeovil, in celebration and recognition of South 
Somerset District Council’s achievements and history. 
 
The Chairman would like to say what a privilege and honour it has been to represent 
and serve South Somerset District Council, attending many and varied events over the 
last four years, despite the pandemic. 
 
He would also like to thank all colleagues for their support and wishes you all the very 
best for the future.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 6

Agenda Item 6



 

 
 
 
 

Confirmation of Minutes of Committee meetings held during March 2023 
 

 
 

Executive Portfolio Holder: Peter Seib, Legal and Democratic Services  
Strategic Director: Jill Byron, Monitoring Officer 
Lead Officer: Angela Cox, Democratic Services Specialist 
Contact Details: Angela.cox@southsomerset.gov.uk or 01935 462148 

 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 
1. As South Somerset District Council merges and becomes Somerset Council from 1st 

April, Members are asked to confirm the final minutes of South Somerset District Council 
Committees. 

 
Public Interest 
 
2. The written minutes are the official record of a Council meeting and they are confirmed 

by Councillors at the next meeting of that Committees.  Because there will be no further 
meetings of some Committees, Council is asked to confirm the final Committee minutes 
as a correct record of the meetings. 

 

Recommendations 
 
3. That Full Council agree to confirm and authorise the relevant Committee Chair to sign as 

a correct record the minutes of:- 

a. Area East Committee - 8 March 2023 
Area North Committee – 22 Nov 2022 
Area South Committee – 8 March 2023 
Area West Committee – 15 Feb 2023 
Audit Committee – 24 March 2023 
District Executive – 2 March 2023 
Licensing Committee – 13 Dec 2022 
Licensing Sub Committee – 16 Jan 2023 
Regulation Committee – 21 March 2023 
Scrutiny Committee – 28 Feb 2023 
Standards Committee – 6 Sept 2022 
 

 
Report 
 
4. The minutes of this final meeting of South Somerset District Council will be presented to 

the new Somerset Council for confirmation.   

Page 7

Agenda Item 7



 

 
5. The draft minutes for the following meetings can be viewed online 
 
Area East Committee - 8 March 2023   
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=127&MId=3339&Ver=4 
 
Area North Committee – 22 Nov 2022  
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=129&MId=3282&Ver=4 
 
Area South Committee – 8 March 2023 (will be available shortly) 
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=3386&Ver=4 
 
Area West Committee – 15 Feb 2023 
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=131&MId=3256&Ver=4 
 
Audit Committee – 24 March 2023 (will be available a day or two before the meeting of Full 
Council) 
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=3385&Ver=4 
 
District Executive – 2 March 2023 
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MId=3293&Ver=4 
 
Licensing Committee – 13 Dec 2022 
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MId=3260&Ver=4 
 
Licensing Sub Committee – 16 Jan 2023 
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=145&MId=3382&Ver=4 
 
Regulation Committee – 21 March 2023 (will be available a day or two before the meeting of 
Full Council) 
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=140&MId=3378&Ver=4 
 
Scrutiny Committee  – 28 Feb 2023 
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=3275&Ver=4 
 
Standards Committee – 6 Sept 2022 
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=146&MId=3129&Ver=4 
 
Full Council - 19 Jan 2023  
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=137&MId=3240&Ver=4 
 
 

Financial Implications 
 
6. There are no financial implications in confirming these minutes as an accurate record of 

each meeting.   
 

Legal implications (if any) and details of Statutory Powers 
 

Page 8

https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=127&MId=3339&Ver=4
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=129&MId=3282&Ver=4
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=130&MId=3386&Ver=4
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=131&MId=3256&Ver=4
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=135&MId=3385&Ver=4
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=136&MId=3293&Ver=4
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=138&MId=3260&Ver=4
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=145&MId=3382&Ver=4
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=140&MId=3378&Ver=4
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=141&MId=3275&Ver=4
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=146&MId=3129&Ver=4
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=137&MId=3240&Ver=4


 

7. It is a requirement of the Local Government Act 1972 that the minutes of meetings are 
kept and confirmed as an accurate record of the meeting.   

 
Council Plan Implications  
 

Council Value: Open and transparent – Actively communicating, engaging and listening to 
feedback 
 

Privacy Impact Assessment 
 
There is no personal data in the minutes of the Council’s meetings.  
 

Background Papers 
 
Minutes of the following Committees are included for signature:  
 

 Area East Committee - 8 March 2023 

 Area North Committee – 22 Nov 2022 

 Area South Committee – 8 March 2023 

 Area West Committee – 15 Feb 2023 

 Audit Committee – 24 March 2023 

 District Executive – 2 March 2023 

 Licensing Committee – 13 Dec 2022 

 Licensing Sub Committee – 16 Jan 2023 

 Regulation Committee – 21 March 2023 

 Scrutiny Committee – 28 Feb 2023 

 Standards Committee – 6 Sept 2022 

Page 9



 

 

 
 
 

 
Reflections of South Somerset District Council 
 
 
Chairman:    Councillor Paul Maxwell 
Vice Chairman:  Councillor Wes Read 
 
 
The Chairman and Vice Chairman will invite the political group leaders and long 
standing Councillors to share their thoughts and stories of South Somerset District 
Council.   
 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 8



 

 
 
 

Sale of commercial development land at Lufton, Yeovil  
(Lufton 2000 joint venture)  
 
 

 
Executive Portfolio Holder: Cllr John Clark, Portfolio Holder for Economic 

Development including Commercial Strategy 
Ward Member(s) Cllr Barbara Appleby, Cllr Peter Seib, Cllr Jeny Snell 
Strategic Director: Jill Byron, Solicitor and Monitoring Officer 
Service Manager: Robert Orrett, Commercial Property, Land and 

Development Manager 
Contact Details: Robert.orrett@southsomerset.gov.uk  or 01935 462075 

 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 
1. To update the recommendation for the sale of the Council’s 50% share in the Lufton 2000 

Joint Venture to its joint venture partner Abbey Manor Developments Limited. 

 
Public Interest 
 
2. The Council owns a 50% share in an area of land intended for commercial development 

on the west side of Lufton Trading Estate, Yeovil.  The proposal was made to Full Council 

in September 2022, and approved for the Council to sell its share to the joint venture 

partner in return for an immediate capital receipt reflecting the current value of the 

Council’s interest.  The sale was subject to S24 direction approval by Somerset County 

Council which has been progressed but not concluded.   

3. Since the proposal and price were discussed subject to approval factors that impact on 

price have worsened materially.  Due to these changes, the prospective buyer has 

indicated they would need to pay a reduced price if the matter is to proceed.  

4. There are commercially sensitive details with this matter and those are contained in a 

confidential appendix to protect the commercial position of the buyer and the joint venture 

partner. 

 

Recommendations 
 

5. That Full Council agree to:- 

a. note the contents of this report. 

b. approve the proposal to sell the Council’s share in the Joint Venture in the asset named 
Lufton 2000 on the terms outlined in the confidential appendix to this report.  

Page 11

Agenda Item 9

mailto:Robert.orrett@southsomerset.gov.uk


 

c. authorise the Chief Financial Officer to seek the approval of the Somerset County 
Council to the sale under the S24 direction. 

d. if the proposal is approved, to delegate the power to the Solicitor and Monitoring Officer 
approval of detail of the sale. 

  

Background 
 
6. The Background remains the same as set out in the repots to District Executive in August 

2022 and to Full Council in September 2022. 

7. This report was presented to Scrutiny Committee on 28 February and District Executive 

on 02 March 2023 who were supportive of the proposal. 

 
Economic Changes 

 
8. Discussions between council officers and representatives of Abbey Manor Developments 

Limited involving the potential sale of the Council’s 50% share in the Lufton 2000 Joint 

Venture took pace in early 2022.  Terms considered acceptable by officers were 

established in late March 2022.  Work was then carried out leading to the reports to District 

Executive, Full Council and after those to implement the process on the S24 direction 

approval by Somerset County Council. 

9. During this time period, there has been a dramatic increase in the level of inflation, Bank 

of England base rates have been increased from 0.5% with eight separate increases 

taking the rate to 4.0%.  There was particular economic turbulence around the mini-budget 

delivered by the Chancellor of the Exchequer.  This was followed by exceptional events 

including the resignation of the Prime Minister after the shortest period in office and the 

reversing of budget changes and increases in the tax burden.  Economic outlook for the 

UK worsened through this with the outlook being little or no growth in GDP in the next few 

years. 

10. Inevitably, for a property transaction involving paying out capital now against potential 

proceeds gathered over a considerable number of years, combining increased costs of 

finance, poorer economy meaning a likely slower rate of disposal and higher Corporation 

Tax rates, significantly impacts on the appraisal which determines the achievable price. 

11. The buyer, Abbey Manor Developments Limited is willing to proceed with the purchase 

but has reduced the price they are prepared to pay.  Officers experienced in this field have 

assessed the value and concluded that the revised price represents the best price 

reasonably achievable in the current market.  The revised price remains above the book 

value of the council’s asset.  Further commentary on this is provided in the confidential 

appendix.  

 

Risks 
 

Page 12



 

12. There is a risk involved in any property transaction that either party might change their 

mind and not proceed, until near certainty is achieved by exchange of contracts.  This risk 

is considered low in the circumstances that both parties already have a high level of 

understanding.  However, major matters of recent years show how major national and 

world changes can arise quite unexpectedly causing unforeseen impacts on parties. 

13. There is also risk in relation to the price that has been discussed.  Again, with the level of 

familiarity this is not considered to be a high risk but detailed preparatory work could reveal 

an unforeseen issue. 

14. The matter will require Somerset County Council approval under the S24 direction, which 

cannot be guaranteed. 

 

Financial Implications 
 
15. The recommended option will deliver a significant capital receipt to the Council that has 

not been budgeted for.  It is understood this would be completed and received during the 

next financial year.  The receipt would be available to use to fund the existing capital 

programme and could replace external borrowing.  

16. There is no budgeted revenue from this asset and none is anticipated in general.  

 

Legal implications (if any) and details of Statutory Powers 
 
17. District Executive has considered the matter and recommends approval by Full Council. 

18. If Full Council approves this recommendation, it will be necessary to contract for the sale 

and complete the transaction.  This should be relatively straightforward as both parties 

have long term involvement with the property.  It will also be necessary to ensure that all 

aspects of the JV are up-to-date and finalised alongside the property transaction. 

19. The Council has wide ranging legal powers in relation to this transaction including the 

General Power of Competence under Section1 of the Localism Act 2011. 

20.  S.120 Local Government Act 1972 –  

21. Acquisition of land by agreement by principal councils for the purpose of its functions 

under this or any other enactment, or the benefit, improvement or development of their 

area the council may acquire by agreement any land, whether situated inside or outside 

their area. 

22.  S.145 Local Government Act 1972 

23. A local authority may do, or arrange the doing of, or contribute towards the expenses of 

the doing of, anything (whether inside or outside their area) necessary or expedient for 

any of the following purposes, that is to say: (a) the provision of entertainment (b) the 

provision of theatre, concert hall, dance hall or other premises suitable for the giving of 

entertainment.   

Page 13



 

 
 
Council Plan Implications  
 

24. This project contributes positively across the Council Plan themes – Protecting Core 

Services and Economy. 

 

Carbon Emissions and Climate Change Implications  
 

25. There will be no impact on Carbon Emissions and Climate Change Implications if the 

recommendation is approved. 

Equality and Diversity Implications 
 

26. There are no specific implications in these proposals. 

 

Privacy Impact Assessment 
 
27. There are no adverse personal data implications to this report. 

 

Background Papers 
 

 Full Council Report - 15th September 2022 - Sale of commercial development land at 
Lufton, Yeovil (Lufton 2000 joint venture) 

 

Page 14



Document is Restricted

Page 15

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



 

 
 

 
 

2021/22 Auditor’s Annual Report 
 

Executive Portfolio Holder: Peter Seib, Finance and Legal Services 
SLT Lead: Nicola Hix, Director – Support, Strategy & Environmental Services 
Lead Officers: Paul Matravers, Lead Specialist - Finance 
 
Contact Details: 

Jill Byron, Monitoring Officer 
Paul.matravers@southsomerset.gov.uk or 01935 462275 
 

 
 

Purpose of the Report 
 

1. The report details the Auditor’s findings on arrangements in place at the Council to 
secure Value for Money. It reports on whether all aspects of the Council’s 
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency, and effectiveness in its use of 
resources are operating effectively.  

 
2. The report also includes a summary of findings and recommendations to the Council 

which are accompanied by the Council’s management response. 
 

Public Interest 
 

3. The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 makes the Comptroller and Auditor 
General responsible for the preparation, publication, and maintenance of the Code 
of Audit Practice. The Code sets out what local auditors are required to do to fulfil 
their statutory responsibilities under the Act. For audits from 2020/21, a revised 2020 
Code of Audit Practice applies. The new Code makes changes to the way local 
auditors report on arrangements to secure Value for Money (VFM). 

 
4. A statutory recommendation under schedule 7 of the Local Audit and Accountancy 

Act requires Full Council to discuss and respond publicly on the report. 
 

Recommendations 
 

5. That Council:  
 

 note the Auditor’s Annual Report and recommendations. 

 note and endorse management’s proposed responses and actions to the 
improvement recommendations. 

 

Background 
 
6. The Code of Audit Practice, which was revised in 2020, updated the way external 

auditors report on arrangements to secure value for money. This has resulted in a 
more comprehensive report and is the outcome of the substantial work undertaken 
by the External Auditors (Grant Thornton) which involved research and evidence 
gathering to support the Council’s position in respect of:  

Page 18

Agenda Item 10

mailto:Paul.matravers@southsomerset.gov.uk


 

 

 Ensuring financial sustainability,  

 Managing governance arrangements,  

 Securing economy, efficiency, and effectiveness in its use of resources.  
 

7. Recommendations made in the report are classified into a hierarchy of levels:  
 

 Statutory Recommendations  

 Key Recommendations  

 Improvement Recommendations  
 

8. Details of the hierarchy of recommendations are contained in Appendix C in the 
Auditor’s Annual Report.  

 

Report 
 
9. The external auditors have made no statutory or key recommendations but have 

made eight improvement recommendations.  The number of recommendations 
made and criteria is summarised below: 

 

 Governance – Three improvement recommendations (Page 13-15) 

 Financial Sustainability – Four improvement recommendations (Page 25-28)  

 Improving, economy, efficiency and effectiveness – One recommendation 
(Page 33) 

 
10. Details of the 2020/21 recommendations and the progress made by management 

in respect of the recommendations is included on pages 34 to 36. 
 
11. Its important to recognise this report shows the Council is in a much stronger and 

improved position than the previous year.  The recommendations made will largely 
be taken forward for adoption in the new Somerset Council as detailed in the report.  

 

Financial Implications 

12. There are no direct financial implications associated with these recommendations. 
 

Council Plan Implications  

13. The report supports the transparent accountability for the Council’s financial 
sustainability, good governance, and delivery of value for money with public funds. 

Carbon Emissions and Climate Change Implications  

14. There are no implications arising from this report.  
 

Equality and Diversity Implications  

15. There are no implications arising from this report. 
 

Page 19



P
age 20



Public

 

 

P
age 21



Public

 

P
age 22



Public

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

 

P
age 23



Public

•

•

•

P
age 24



Public

P
age 25



Public

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 26



Public

P
age 27



Public

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 28



Public

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 29



Public

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 30



Public

•

P
age 31



Public

P
age 32



Public

•
•
•

•

•

•

P
age 33



Public

P
age 34



Public

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 35



Public

P
age 36



Public

•

•

•

P
age 37



Public

•

•

•

•

P
age 38



Public

•

•

P
age 39



Public

•

•

•

P
age 40



Public

•

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 41



Public

P
age 42



Public

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 43



Public

P
age 44



Public

P
age 45



Public

•
•

•

P
age 46



Public

•

•

•

•

•

P
age 47



Public

•

•

•

•

P
age 48



Public

P
age 49



Public

•

•

•

•

P
age 50



Public

P
age 51



Public

P
age 52



Public

P
age 53



Public

P
age 54



Public

P
age 55



Public

•

•

•

P
age 56



P
age 57



Public

P
age 58



Public

P
age 59



Public

P
age 60



P
age 61



 

 
 
 
 

Report of Executive Decisions 

 
 

Executive Portfolio Holder: Val Keitch, Leader of Council, Strategy  
Director: Jill Byron, Monitoring Officer 
Lead Officer: Angela Cox, Democratic Services Specialist 
Contact Details: angela.cox@southsomerset.gov.uk or (01935) 462148 

 

Purpose of the Report 

 
This report is submitted for information and summarises decisions taken by the Chief 
Executive, Portfolio Holders and District Executive Committee since the last meeting 
of Council in January 2023.   
 
 
Members are invited to ask any questions of the Portfolio Holders. 
 

 
Background Papers 
 
All Published 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 62

Agenda Item 11



Appendix A – March 2023 
 

Portfolio Subject Decision Taken By Date 

Area East Portfolio  Wincanton Town Centre 
Regeneration - Revisions to 
Timetable  

That District Executive noted that:- 
a. the total amount of the agreed capital budget for 

the Wincanton Town Centre Regeneration had 
been reprofiled so that the spend anticipated to 
be incurred 2023/24 and in following years had 
been deferred by a year; 

 
b. future spend would be dependent upon an 

updated business case being submitted to the 
Somerset Council next year for implementation 
in 2024/25 and beyond; 

 
c. the total forecast spend to the end of the current 

financial year was £601k (of which £318k capital 
and the remainder revenue costs associated with 
the project (e.g. events and project management 
costs). Of the capital expenditure, £197k related 
to 2022/23 and £121k to the period 2018/19 to 
2021/22. 

 

District 
Executive 

02/02/23 

Economic 
Development 
including Commercial 
Strategy 

SSDC Opium Power Ltd - 
distribution of 2022/23 half 
year profits 

That District Executive members consented to the 
request from SSDC Opium Ltd to distribute the half-
year profit generated in 2022/23 by FERL1 of £900k 
as a dividend payment to the two shareholders, 
SSDC and Opium Power Limited, in the agreed 
proportions: 65:35 respectively. 
 

District 
Executive 

02/02/23 

Area South Portfolio 
and Yeovil Vision 

Yeovil Crematorium - 
Revisions to Timetable 

That District Executive noted that:- 
a. The total amount of the agreed capital budget on 

the Yeovil Crematorium Refurbishment and 

District 
Executive 

02/02/23 

P
age 63



Portfolio Subject Decision Taken By Date 

Extension Project had been reprofiled so that the 
spend anticipated to be incurred 2023/24 and in 
following years has been deferred by a year. 

b. Future spend would be dependent upon an 
updated business case being submitted to the 
Somerset Council next year for implementation 
2024/25 and beyond. 

c. The total forecast capital spend for this financial 
year was £0.700m, spending in 2023/24 was 
£0.385m and the remaining £3.367m had been 
reprofiled for 2024/25 and beyond. 

 

Strategy Corporate Performance Report 
2022-23: 3rd Quarter 

That District Executive agreed to:- 
 

a. note the Corporate Performance Report 2022-
23: 3rd Quarter 

 
b. note the amended Key Performance Indicators 

(KPIs) 
 

District 
Executive 

02/03/23 

Economic 
Development 
including Commercial 
Strategy 

Sale of commercial 
development land at Lufton, 
Yeovil (Lufton 2000 joint 
venture) 

This report appears on the Council Agenda District 
Executive 

02/03/23 

Finance and Legal 
Services 

2022/23 Quarter 3 Capital 
Budget Monitoring Report for 
the Period Ending 31st 
December 2022 

That District Executive agreed to:- 
a. note the variances being forecast against the 

2022/23 revenue budget as set out in Table 
One. 

b. note the forecast year-end reserves position of 
the revenue budget shown in Appendix A. 
 

District 
Executive 

02/03/23 

P
age 64



Portfolio Subject Decision Taken By Date 

Finance and Legal 
Services 

2022/23 Quarter 3 Revenue 
Budget Monitoring Report for 
the Period Ending 31 
December 2022 

That District Executive agreed to:- 
a. note the variances being forecast against the 

2022/23 revenue budget as set out in Table 
One. 

b. note the forecast year-end reserves position 
of the revenue budget shown in Appendix A. 

 

District 
Executive 

02/03/23 

Strategy and Housing 
Portfolios 

Urgent Decision of the Chief 
Executive relating to the 
provision of Hostel 
Accommodation 

That subject to the consent of Somerset County 
Council under the section 24 Direction issued by the 
Secretary of State on 10 May 2022, the Chief 
Executive has agreed to vire £219,829 from the 
Housing & Homelessness Reserve (X8380) to the 
revenue housing budget to fund a 10-bed space 
hostel with support for single homeless people and 
rough sleepers for 2023/24. 

Chief 
Executive 

02/03/23 

  

P
age 65



 

 
 
 
 

Audit Committee  
 

Committee Chairman: Cllr Mike Hewitson 
Lead Officer: Nicola Hix, Section 151 Officer 
Contact Details: nicola.hix@southsomerset.gov.uk  
 
 
This report summarises the items considered by the Audit Committee since the last 
report to Council in January 2023. The Audit Committee has met once, on  
26 January 2023. 
The draft minutes of the January meeting can be viewed on the website at: 
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=135&Year=0 
 
Below are the items that have been considered. 
 
26 January 2032 
 

 Statement of Accounts 2020/21 (presentation of final documents provided for 
information at the conclusion of the 2020/21 audit of accounts) 

 2021/22 External Audit Plan 

 SWAP Internal Audit Plan Progress Report 2022-23 

 Risk Management Update Q3 2022/23 

 Update on Improving Environmental Services and Corporate Governance 
 
The next meeting is scheduled to take place on Friday 24 March 2023 at 10.00am and 
the following items are on the agenda: 
 

 Draft Annual Governance Statement 2022-23 

 Interim Audit Findings Report 2021/22 

 2021/22 Auditor’s Annual Report 

 SWAP Internal Audit Plan Outturn Report 2022-23 

 SSDC Strategic & Corporate Risk register for Quarter 4 

 Civil Contingencies Update 

 Health and Safety Update 

 Report on Whistleblowing for the Municipal Year 2022-23 
 
 
 
Mike Hewitson 
Chairman of Audit Committee 
 
 

Page 66

Agenda Item 12

mailto:nicola.hix@southsomerset.gov.uk
https://modgov.southsomerset.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=135&Year=0


 

 
 
 
 

Scrutiny Committee 

 

 

This report summarises the work of the Scrutiny Committee since the last report to 
Council in January 2023.  
 
Since the last report, the Scrutiny committee have met to consider the reports going 
before the District Executive committee on 31st January 2023, and the final Scrutiny 
committee meeting was held on 28th February 2023. 
 
The role of scrutinising the work of The Council can be challenging. The Chairman 
would like to give thanks to all members and officers past and present, who have 
contributed to the Scrutiny and Overview function at South Somerset District Council. 
The dedication of all involved ensured that this work was delivered both effectively and 
professionally.  
 
As of 1st April 2023, due to Local Government Reorganisation, the South Somerset 
District Council ModGov system will be merged into a new ModGov system for 
Somerset Council. Archived agendas and minutes of this committee will be available 
at www.somerset.gov.uk.  
 
 
Gerard Tucker 
Scrutiny Committee Chairman 
 
 

 

Page 67

Agenda Item 13

http://www.somerset.gov.uk/

	Agenda
	6 Chairman's Engagements
	7 Confirmation of Minutes of Committee meetings held during March 2023
	8 Reflections of South Somerset District Council
	9 Sale of commercial development land at Lufton, Yeovil (Lufton 2000 joint venture)
	9 Lufton JV Confidential Appendix

	10 2021/22 Auditor's Annual Report
	10 SSDC 2021-22 Interim Auditors Annual Report - March 2023

	11 Report of Executive Decisions
	11 March Council Exec Decisions

	12 Audit Committee
	13 Scrutiny Committee

